II. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


1. The Circuit Court's ruling is erroneous, and ought to be reviewed and reversed since the 
doctrine of res judicata is inapplicable to the instant matter for several reasons. The parties are 
different and each annual assessment for taxation presents a separate and distinct issue such that 
the causes of action are not identicaL The instant action was not nor could not have been 
resolved in any prior action. 

a. Final Judgment on the Merits. 

b. The Identity of Parties in the 2007 Claim and the Instant Claim are Entirely Different. 

c. The Cause of Action Identified in the Instant Cause of Action is Substantially Dissimilar . 
to the Cause of Action Determined in the 2007 Claim. 

(i) The Assessor's Valuations of the Petitioner's Properties for 2008 Property Tax 
Purposes Violate the Equal and Uniform Taxation Mandate of the West Virginia 
Constitution and the Equal Protection Clause of the United States Constitution. 

(ii) The Assessor's Valuations of the Petitioner's Properties for 2008 Property Tax 
Purposes Violate Applicable Provisions of the Statutes and Regulations Governing the 
Administration 'of Property Taxes in West Virginia in a Manner that Systematically 
Overvalues the Petitioners' Properties. 

d. In Disregard for Case and Statutory Law, the Circuit Court Erred in Failing to Present 
Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law to Support its Order. 

III. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

This appeal is taken from an Order of the Circuit Court of Momoe County (the "Circuit 

Court") dated June 13, 2011 (the "Order"). Appendix (App.) pp. 000704-000706. The Order 

denied the Petitioners' Petition for Appeal from Ad Valorem Property Tax Assessments for the 

year 2008 (the "Petition") which were issued by the Assessor of Momoe County (the 

"Assessor") and affirmed by the Momoe County Commission sitting as Board of Equalization 

and Review (the "Commission"). App. pp. 00704-00706. 

The Petitioners are Mountain America, LLC ("Mountain America"), along with several 

dozen individuals and entities, who owned developed lots and undeveloped residue in the area of 

Momoe County, West Virginia, designated as the Walnut Springs Mountain Reserve ("Walnut 

Springs") which, at the time of the 2008 Petition, were being developed by Mountain America, 



and five (5) other related entities. App. pp. 000015-000016. The properties in Walnut Springs 

are located outside of Union, West Virginia, and had predominantly been acquired in the last 

several years by a number of limited liability companies (with the leading entity being Mountain 

America, LLC), with the intent to develop a residential living neighborhood. App. pg. 00024. 

Mountain America, LLC has recently filed bankruptcy and many of the subject property lots are 

now owned by various banks, who were able to perform independent appraisements of the 

property which was not available during the 2007 Claim (hereinafter defined) because it was 

difficult to determine the fair market value of the property, causing an undue influence of recent 

sales prices for the property in question. 

In this appeal, the Petitioners seek relief from, and correction of, erroneous assessments 

of their property for 2008 ad valorem property tax purposes (collectively, "the Assessments"). 

As this Court is aware, several of the Petitioners unsuccessfully appealed their 2007 assessments 

to this Court (the "2007 Claim"). While counsel for the undersigned recognizes that the record, 

certified to this Court in regards to the 2008 assessments (the "2008 Claim"), is the record upon 

which any final decision must be issued by this Court, the Petitioners in their brief herein for the 

purposes of elaborating upon similarities and differences between the 2008 Claim and 2007 

Claim may on occasion refer to the record in the 2007 Claim which in its entirety was before this 

Court in the case of Mountain America, LLC, et aI, v. Huffman, 224 W. Va. 669, 687 S.E.2d 788 

(2009). Further, such differences in the 2007 Claim and 2008 Claim appear in the 2008 record. 

App.pp.000021;000096-000115;000134. 

During the period oftitne from July 1, 2006 tlu'ough January 31, 2008, the Assessor and 

her staff undertook a new valuation of real properties owned by the Petitioners in the geographic 

area of Walnut Springs Mountain Reserve. App. pg. 000034-000035. The property as it was 
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configured on July 1, 2006, and as it was later configured on July 1, 2007, included some 

developed lots and undeveloped residue. App. pp. 000021-000022. 

The properties in Walnut Springs area are located outside of Union, West Virginia, and 

had predominantly been acquired in the last several years by a number of limited liability 

companies (the leading such entity being Mountain America, LLC), with the general intent to 

develop the area to include residential uses and related amenities. Neither Mountain America, 

LLC, nor any other entity or person developing the Walnut Springs area has recorded a separate 

development plat or designation of land use with the County Commission. (See West Virginia 

Code §11-3-1b.) 

At the time of the 2008 Claim, the Walnut Springs area was still in the very early stages 

of development. Its developers then anticipated that, ultimately, it would provide some basic 

services and amenities in a unique rural community living environment. Most of those services 

and amenities did not exist at the time of the 2008 Claim and many still do not exist. The 

developed lots were subject to uniform restrictions and covenants which were recorded in the 

Monroe County Clerk's office. App. pp. 000149-000152. Said restrictions and covenants were 

referenced in the deeds of out-conveyed individual parcels which had been conveyed by 

Mountain America, LLC and the other limited liability companies over the past several years. 

Those restrictions generally reflected an intent to provide for primarily residential uses, but did 

give the developer the discretion to permit other uses. 

In 2007, as the Assessor endeavored to perform her countywide assessment duties and 

responsibilities under West Virginia law, a determination was made either independently by the 

Assessor, or in consultation with the West Virginia State Tax Department (the "Tax 

Department"), to concentrate upon the Walnut Springs properties because of a recent number of 

sales transactions there. App. pp. 000034-000035. In the course of that effort, the Assessor 

3 




proceeded to create an entirely new "neighborhood" for appraisal and assessment purposes for 

the 2007 tax year, which has now been canied over for the 2008 tax year. App. pp. 000034

000035. It included only the Walnut Springs propeliies, both developed and undeveloped, to the 

extent that the Assessor understood the geographic scope of those properties. App. pg. 000035~ 

That same neighborhood has been maintained by the· Assessor for the 2008 Claim. App. pg. 

000034. At the same time, the designated neighborhood and resultant increased values ignored 

comparable contiguous propeliies notwithstanding the similarities in geography, type of land and 

infrastructure available. App. pp. 000043-000045. 

At the time the Assessor was creating a new neighborhood for the Walnut Springs 

properties, and for several years prior to that time, the Monroe County Assessor's office had 

been monitored and cited for many deficiencies in its annual valuation and assessment process. 

App. pp. 000043; 000159-000182. The Assessor's office had failed several appraisal study tests 

conducted by the State Tax Department pursuant to the latter's oversight responsibilities. App. 

pg.000043; 000175-000] 78. In addition many of those same tests reflected deficiencies during 

the subsequent 2008 tax period. App. pp. 000043-00044; 000159-000] 82. Specifically, the tests 

conducted in 2007 and 2008 were designed to reflect, in aggregate, a general measure of 

compliance within permitted deviations between the Assessor's land book values and actual 

market values for the relevant periods. App. pp. 00043-00044; 00159-00182. The preliminary 

reports of the results of those tests for September and December of 2007, reflected a failure by 

the Monroe County Assessor on many of the ratio evaluation tests conducted by the State Tax 

Department. App. pp. 000159-000182. 

During the Board of Equalization and Review hearing of this matter at the initial 

February 7, 2007 hearing, the Assessor testified that her office's failure to attain compliance with 

the State Tax Depatiment compliance tests was due to the recent sales of properties in the 
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Walnut Springs area and that her actions in the most recent assessment cycle would correct these 

deficiencies. However, sales ratio studies conducted by the State Tax Department, for Monroe 

County for the 2008 tax year. which is a full year after her above cited testimony regarding 

Walnut Springs, continues to show significant non-compliance with those tests. App. pp. 

000041-000043; 000159-000182. 

The evidence in the record further reflects for a second year that the Assessor made no 

effort to update the taxable values of other real property in the area of the Walnut Springs 

properties, and that there was an enormous, and unacceptable, deviation between the percentage 

of fair market value at which the tax values of the Petitioners' properties were set when 

compared to the tax values of all other real property in Monroe County. App. pp. 000017

000022;000045-000046;000116-000146. 

In the case at bar, during the 2007 ad valorem property tax cycle the tax values of 

literally dozens of parcels of property in the Walnut Springs "neighborhood," including the 

undeveloped residue and previously out-conveyed lots, were subjected to massive increases, with 

the values of most or all of those parcels far exceeding the 10% state law notice requirement. In 

fact many of the increases were several thousand percent higher than the prior year's assessment. 

While the increases for the 2008 ad valorem property tax year in most instances were not 

significant like those experienced in 2007, the record reflects that the unconstitutional disparity 

in assessments for the Petitioners' properties in Monroe County has continued and perhaps been 

exacerbated. App. pp. 000017-000022; 000116-000146. 

At the February 14th hearing, the only two witnesses who testified were licensed and 

certified real estate appraiser, Mr. Todd Goldman, who was called as an expert witness by the 

Petitioners, and Donna Hoffman, the Assessor of Monroe County. 
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a. Todd Goldman's Testimony and Relevant Factors Based on His 
Testimony and Exhibits 

The values of property in Walnut Springs, including the Petitioners' lots and residue, as 

determined by the Assessor are clearly not, as required by law, representative of the true and 

actual value of the parcels as required by W.Va. Code § 11-3-1 et seq. App. pp. 000096

0000146 (emphasizing pg 0000134). Nor were they equal and uniform as required by the West 

Virginia Constitution. W. Va. State Constitution. Art. X, Sec. 1. 

Petitioners' Exhibit 3A, Walnut Springs Mountain Reserve Sale and Assessment Data, 

reflects that, for the several dozen parcels of property encompassed within the Walnut Springs 

Mountain Reserve (the Petitioners' properties), the Assessor's values range anywhere from a low 

of 43% of recent sales prices to a high of 413% of recent sales prices, with an average value, 

being proposed by the Assessor for the Petitioners' properties, of 150% of documented recent 

sales prices. App. pp. 000117-000119. The Assessor never rebutted this evidence. Instead, the 

Assessor, in her own testimony and through her counsel's arguments, asserted that the sales 

prices for those properties were the best evidence to support a determination of true and actual 

value, never explaining the fact that, on average, the Assessor's methodology valued those 

properties at 150% of the average sales price. App. pg. 000037. Further, the Assessor, in her 

2008 valuation of those properties, set some as high as 413% of the true and actual value as 

evidenced by recent sales of those same properties. I 

Petitioners' Exhibit Number 3B, titled Market Transactions, presents for the past several 

years an additional analysis of more than 120 randomly selected parcels of property which are 

from other geographic areas in Monroe County besides Walnut Springs Mountain Reserve and 

which were recently sold. App. pp. 000120-000125. The 2008 values for those properties, as 

1 In fact, in 2007 many of those parcels reflect a several thousand percent increase in their assessments 
from the prior year. 
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presented by the Assessor to the Commission as a Board of Equalization and Review, reflect that 

her values for those properties were, on average, only 42% of true and actual fair market value as 

represented by the analysis of actual recent sales transaction prices for those very properties. 

App. pp. 000016. As referenced above, the Petitioners' properties are appraised at an average of 

150% of recent sales. App. pp. 000016-0000017; 000020; 000022-000023; 000117-000120. 

Petitioners' Exhibit Number 3C, Non-Transacted Properties As of Recent Assessment 

Date, reflects a further sampling of several dozen other properties which the property records of 

Monroe County show had not changed hands in an arms-length transaction for several years, 

until a recent sales transaction for those properties occurred between 2005 and 2007. App. pp. 

00126-00130. The analysisof that data reflects that the values, presented by the Assessor to the 

Board of Equalization and Review for those properties are, on average, only 45.2% of the true 

and actual value reflected by their recent sales prices. 

Petitioners' Exhibit Number 3D, Examples of Excessively Low Assessments, further 

indicates that many properties which recently sold in Monroe County continue to be valued for 

tax purposes on the Assessor's 2008 property books on average, at only an unbelievable 10.58% 

of true and actual value and in some instances as low as only three or four percent of true and 

actual value. App. pp. 00131-00134. 

This testimony and the exhibits show that the 2008 tax values delivered by the Assessor 

does not treat in a fair, equal and uniform manner the Petitioners or any Monroe County property 

owner. The records show similar real property being valued for tax purposes at less than 10.58% 

of its true and actual value, while at the same time the Assessor, in her 2008 land books, is 

attempting to set the taxable value of the Petitioners' property on average at 150% and often at 

413% or higher of its true and actual value. There is no evidence in the record which can 

support a difference between 10.58% and 150% as reasonable, fair, or equal, or as anything other 
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than an intentional and systematic, multi-year, over-valuation of Petitioners' properties and an 

intentional and systematic under-valuation of nearly all other real propelty in Monroe County, 

which has been ongoing for several years. 

Todd Goldman's testimony and Petitioners' Exhibit Number 3F, Neighboring Property 

Tax Appraised Values, further points out the absurdity and unfairness of the Monroe County 

property tax values as presented by the Assessor in her 2008 land books. Petitioners' Exhibit 3F 

identifies dozens of properties which are either contiguous, or in close proximity, to the 

Petitioners' Walnut Springs properties. App. pp. 000135-000139. The Assessor further admitted 

in her testimony both in the 2007 and 2008 proceedings that these properties basically had the 

same physical characteristics and infrastructure development status as, and were in geographic 

proximity to, the Walnut Springs properties. App. pp. 000021-000021. 

However, since they were not included within the geographic confines of the Assessor's 

newly and arbitrarily created neighborhood for Walnut Springs, the tax values she would set for 

those contiguous and proximate other properties are not anywhere near the average of 150% of 

true and actual values she would assign to the Walnut Springs properties, but are, instead, set, on 

average at $650.07 per acre. App. pp. 000020-000022; 000135-000139. This compares to the 

Petitioners' properties which are valued by the Assessor on average at $26,777.00 per acre. App. 

pp.00021. 

Todd Goldman's testimony and Petitioners' Exhibit Number 3G, Tax Appraised Values 

in Longview Estates, further shows the absurd relationship between the values urged by the 

Assessor for the Petitioners' properties when compared to the values she has set for propelties in 

a comparable neighborhood in Monroe County. App. pp. 000140-000145. 

Longview Estates is a subdivision in Monroe County that has more completely developed 

infrastructure, water, sewer, roads, etc. than Walnut Springs. However, a detailed sampling of 
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the Longview Estates properties reflects that the values in the 2008 land books proposed by the 

Assessor for them are at an average of $2,804.74 per acre. App. pg. 000021. This, again, is in 

sharp contrast to the values the Assessor would set for the Petitioners' property in the Walnut 

Springs Mountain Reserve at $26,777.00 per acre. 

Todd Goldman's testimony and Petitioners' Exhibit Number 3R, (Real Property 

Assessment Recapitulation for Monroe County), and Petitioners' Exhibit 11, for the February ih 

2007 proceedings, presents a series of further disturbing and shocking data which reflects that 

the value of all lands in Monroe County, as proposed by the Assessor for 2007, showed a total 

aggregate increase in appraised values for all lands as $29,591,216.00. Of that amount, 36.86% 

was solely attributable to the proposed values of the Petitioners' properties urged by the 

Assessor. 

That is, $10,908,366.00 of the total one-year increase of $29,591,216.00 in 2007 which 

has now been carried over to 2008 is, according to the Assessor, attributable solely to 

Petitioners' properties. Put another way, 1 % of the land area of all the real property to be taxed 

in Monroe County in 2008 (representing the Petitioners' properties), according to the Assessor's 

methods, would be compelled to pay 36.86% of the total increase in property taxes to be 

experienced by all Monroe County property owners. 

While the 2008 tax year does not evidence the same substantial increases in taxable 

values for 2008 as experienced by Petitioners in 2007, it does maintain and carryover those prior 

increases without at the same time making any significant effort to equalize the disparities in the 

taxable values of other similar properties throughout Monroe County. App. pp. 000146. 

Petitioners' expert analysis and cited exhibits. establish beyond question that the Assessor 

could not more clearly define, describe, or design a system which epitomizes the definition of 

unfairness, inequality and non-unifOlmity. The evidence presents a clear showing of an 
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intentional and systematic over-valuation of Petitioners' properties and a systematic and 

intentional under-valuation of other properties. The 2008 land books delivered by the Assessor, 

are not fair, equal or uniform. They do not reflect the true and actual/fair market value of all the 

properties in Monroe County, or of Taxpayer' properties. 

In his testimony, Mr. Goldman clearly destroys any feeble arguments made by the 

Assessor in her sworn testimony that she will attain equality, between real property in Walnut 

Springs and in the rest of the county, by continuing modest across-the-board increases in 

appraisal values for all properties in the county. App. pp 000022; 000146. Mr. Goldman's 

testimony shows that even if you accept Mrs. Huffman's testimony as to her across-the-board 

increases (which as shown, below, Petitioners assert is not true), and even if Walnut Springs is 

excluded from these increases it will take at least twenty years to approach equality in appraised 

value percentages in Monroe County. App. pg. 000022. 

An additional analysis undertaken by the Petitioners' expert is represented this year by 

Exhibit 3E of Petitioners' exhibit to the February 14, 2008, Transcript titled the Assessor's Land 

Table Results. App. pp. 000134. This exhibit analyzes the land tables created by the Assessor's 

office from 2006 through 2008. Its critical importance is established by the fact that the land 

tables are the underlying valuation tool used by the Assessor in valuing land for the purposes of 

the annual appraisals required by State law and the State Constitution. 

b. Assessor of Monroe County, Ms. Donna Huffman's, Testimony and 
Relevant Factors Based Upon Her Testimony and Exhibits 

The Assessor's testimony clearly reflected that she was attempting to place the blame for 

the failure of her office's continuing several years' long deficiencies in Monroe County's 

property tax assessments, and its failure of the 2007 and 2008 Tax Department compliance 

testing, on the sales of the Walnut Springs Mountain Reserve properties, which she asserts 
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caused her overall compliance with those tests to fail. App. pp. 000033; 000036. These are the 

same arguments she made in 2007 when she indicated she was attempting to solve the 

deficiencies via the substantial increase upon Petitioners' properties. However, a year has passed

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