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

are in privity with a participant in the prior proceeding. SyI. pt 3, Lloyd's, Inc., 225 W. Va. 377, 

693 S.E.2d 451 (quoting Syi. pt. 4, Blake, 201 W. Va. 469,498 S.E.2d 41). "The term 'privity' 

is a somewhat fluid concept", applying when the relationship between the parties gives them "a 

common interest in the outcome" of the litigation. Conley, 171 W. Va. at 589, 301 S.E.2d at 

220-21. This Court has recognized that '''[p]rivity ... is merely a word used to say that the 

relationship between one party who is a party on the record and another is close enough to 

include that other within the res judicata.'" Beahm v. 7-Eleven, Inc., 223 W. Va. 269, 273, 672 

S.E.2d 598, 602 (2008) (per curiam) (quoting Rowe v. Grapevine Corp., 206 W. Va. 703, 715, 

527 S.E.2d 814 (1999)). 

In determining whether privity exists, this Court has adopted the doctrine of "virtual 

representation." rd. at 274, 672 S.E.2d at 603. "Virtual representation, a variety of privity, 

'precludes relitigation of any issue that [has] once been adequately tried by a person sharing a 

substantial identity of interests with a nonparty.'" Id. (quoting Galanos v. Nat'! Steel Corp., 178 

W. Va. 193, 195,358 S.E.2d 452,454 (1987). In Beahm, this Court held that the plaintiffs in the 
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subsequent case were in privity with parties to the prior dispute and, accordingly, the second 

element of res judicata was met, despite the fact that the plaintiffs in the subsequent case were 

not named parties in the prior case. Id. at 274, 672 S.B.2d at 603. The plaintiffs in the second 

case shared common counsel with parties in the prior case. Id. Thus, they had notice of the prior 

suit and "would have· had the same practical opportunity to control the course of the 

proceedings." Id. The fact that in the first proceeding the court denied a motion to add several 

of the plaintiffs in the subsequent suit as parties did not defeat a finding of privity. Id. at 271, 

672 S.B. 2d at 600. The parties were alleging injuries as a result of the same incident and relied 

on the same expert witnesses. Id. at 274, 672 S.E.2d at 603. Accordingly, this Court held that 

"[t]here can be no question that the interests of [the plaintiffs in the second case] and the 

[plaintiffs in the prior proceeding] [were] decidedly the same." Id. This Court further noted that 

"under the circumstances of this case, the only reasonable conclusion is that these [plaintiffs'] 

interests [were] adequately represented by their own attorney in the [prior] litigation who 

advanced substantially the same proof in both cases." Id. 

Although in Mountain America this Court held that the 2007 Circuit Court appeal of the 

Petitioners other than Mountain America, LLC was not properly perfected, the interests of those 

Petitioners were adequately represented by Mountain America, LLC. Mountain America, 224 

W. Va. at 681, 687 S.B.2d at 780. As in Beahm, the parties to the 2007 and 2008 proceedings 

shared common counsel and relied on the same expert witness, Todd Goldman, who presented 

virtually identical testimony regarding the 2007 and 2008 assessments in the Hearing before the 

County Commission. Moreover, the Petitioners asserted allegations regarding the ad valorem 

property tax assessments of the properties located in the Walnut Springs development which are 

indistinguishable from those presented by Mountain America, LLC in the 2007 Claim. 
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Accordingly, the Petitioners other than Mountain America, LLC are in privity with Mountain 

America, LLC, which was a party to the 2007 proceeding. Because Mountain America, LLC 

adequately represented the interests of the disgruntled landowners with respect to the 2007 

Claim, the second element of res judicata is satisfied with respect to all Petitioners. 

3. 	 The cause of action identified in the present matter is the same as the cause of 
action presented in the 2007 proceeding. 

The Petitioners argue that the cause of action in the present matter is substantially 

dissimilar to the cause of action presented in the 2007 Claim because the claims have different 

parties; however, the identity of the parties is irrelevant to the third element of res judicata. "The 

test to determine if the issue or cause of action involved in the two suits is identical is to inquire 

whether the same evidence would support both actions or issues." White, 164 W. Va. at 290, 

262 S.B.2d at 756 (citing Gallaher v. City of Moundsville, 34 W. Va. 730, 12 S.E. 859 (1891». 

"'It is not essential that the matter should have been formally put in issue in a former suit, but it 

is sufficient that the status of the suit was such that the parties might have had the matter 

disposed of on its merits.'" Syl. pt. 4, Lloyds, Inc., 255 W. Va. 377, 693 S.B.2d 451 (quoting 

Syl. pt. 1, Sayre's Adm'r v. Harpold, 33 W. Va. 553, 11 S.B. 16 (1890); Syl. pt. 1, In re Estate of 

McIntosh, 144 W. Va. 583, 109 S.B.2d 153 (1959); Syl. pt. 1 Conley, 171 W. Va. 584, 301 

S.E.2d 216). 

For instance, in Sinkewitz v. City of Huntington, 217 W. Va. 265,269,617 S.E.2d 812, 

816 (2005) (per curiam), this Court held that the cause of action in the second suit was the same 

as in the first proceeding, as both claims required the court to determine the constitutionality of a 

city zoning ordinance. There, the appellant contended that res judicata did not apply because the 

first suit challenged the constitutionality of a city zoning ordinance on the grounds of vagueness 

and equal protection, while the second suit challenged the constitutionality of the ordinance on 
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due process grounds. Id. She further asserted that unlike the first action, the second proceeding 

required the development of evidence regarding whether or not there had been an abandonment 

of the non~conforming use of the property. rd. However, this Court explained that although the 

appellant asserted different grounds for finding the ordinance unconstitutional in the second suit, 

"it is clear that in both cases the court was required to rule on the constitutionality of the 

ordinance." Id. 

Moreover, in Beahm, this Court held that the appellants could not credibly argue that the 

first and second proceeding were dissimilar, especially in light of the fact that two of the 

appellants in the subsequent proceeding had attempted to join the prior litigation. Beahm, 223 

W. Va. at 276,672 S.E.2d at 605. In Beahm, the complaint in the second case alleged identical 

claims to those presented in the first case, while also adding two additional claims. Id. at 275, 

672 S.E.2d at 604. Additionally, the prayers for relief in both matters were almost identical. Id. 

Thus, this Court held that the appellants had "failed to provide [it] with any evidence that the 

instant action [was] so vastly different than the [first proceeding]. ..." rd. at 276, 672 S.E.2d at 

605. This Court further noted that the fact that different pieces of property were alleged to have 

sustained damage in the later proceeding did not preclude the effects of res judicata. Id. 

In the present matter, the Petitioners' appeal to the Circuit Court regarding the ad 

valorem property tax assessments is identical to the appeal presented in 2007. Both matters 

challenged the constitutionality of the property tax assessments, as determined by Ms. Huffinan, 

as Assessor of Monroe County. Accordingly, both the 2007 Claim and the present matter would 

require similar evidence regarding the method by which Ms. Huffman, as the Assessor of 

Monroe County, determined the property tax assessments for the properties located in the Walnut 
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Springs development. Nonetheless, the Petitioners argue that their equal protection and unifonn 

and equal taxation arguments have not been addressed. 

However, in Mountain America, this Court specifically addressed these ar~uments, 

holding that based upon existing West Virginia law, it was appropriate for Ms. Huffman, as the 

Assessor of Monroe County, to utilize the "market value" or "the price paid for property in an 

ann's length transaction" in assessing the "true and actual value" of the property located in 

Walnut Springs. Mountain America, 224 W. Va. at 688,687 S.E.2d at 787. "It is a general rule 

that valuations for taxation purposes fixed by an assessing officer are presumed to be correct. 

The burden of showing an assessment to be erroneous is, of course, upon the taxpayer, and proof 

of such fact must be clear." Syl. pi. 1, W. Pocahontas Props., Ltd. v. County Comm'n of Wetzel 

County, 189 W. Va. 322,431 S.E.2d 661 (1993). In Mountain America, this Court held that the 

disgruntled landowners had failed to meet the burden of proving that the valuation made by Ms. 

Huffman, as· the Assessor of Monroe County, was excessive, as Mountain America, LLC had 

failed to offer any evidence as to the true and actual value of the property at issue, such as an 

appraiser's opinion as to the value of the property. Mountain America, 224 W. Va. at 686, 887 

S. E.2d at 787. At the Hearing before the County Commission regarding the 2008 assessments, 

the Petitioners again failed to offer any evidence as to the true and actual value of the property 

located in the Walnut Springs development. Mr. Goldman, the Petitioners' expert witness, 

suggested that the Walnut Springs properties were assessed at a higher percentage of recent sales 

prices than other properties; however, he did not prepare appraisals of the properties at issue or 

in any other way provide any evidence as to the true and actual value of the property. App. p. 

000024. As in the 2007 Claim, the Petitioners have failed to demonstrate by clear and 
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convincing evidence that the assessments are incorrect. See Mountain America, 224 W. Va. at 

688, 887 S.E.2d at 787. 

It is important to note that the Supreme Court of Appeals of West Virginia previously 

addressed the identical constitutional arguments raised by the disgruntled landowners in the 

present proceeding. In rejecting the disgruntled landowners' argument in Mountain America, 

this Court upheld the Circuit Court's determination that Mountain America, LLC had failed to 

show that Ms. Huffman, as the Assessor of Monroe County, had intentionally and systematically 

under-valued property for assessment purposes. rd. at 690, 687 S.E.2d at 789. This Court then 

found that the disgruntled landowners failed to establish that the properties located in Walnut 

Springs were comparable to any other properties in Monroe County. rd. at 687, 887 S.E.2d at 

786. This finding is consistent with the testimony of the landowners' own expert who indicated 

in his· testimony that he would not use comparables from Walnut Springs if he were appraising 

property in Longview Estates. App. p. 000032. 

Even assuming that the property located III the Walnut Springs development is 

comparable to other property in Monroe County, this Court has found the facts of Allegheny 

Pittsburgh Coal Co. v. County Comm'n of Webster County, 488 U.S. 336 (1989) to be 

distinguishable from those presented here. Mountain America, 224 W. Va. at 689, 887 S.E.2d at 

788. In Allegheny Pittsburgh Coal, the taxpayers showed that the assessor had failed to make 

valuation adjustments to comparable land for more than ten (10) years .." Allegheny Pittsburgh 

Coal, 488 U.S. at 343. There is nothing in the record in the present matter which suggests that 

such discrimination has occurred in the present matter. Significantly, the Equal Protection 

Clause "does not require immediate general adjustment on the basis of the latest market 

developments." rd. Instead, as long as general adjustments are accurate enough over a short 
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period of time to equalize the differences in proportion between the assessments of a class of 

property holders, the Equal Protection Clause is satisfied. rd. Accordingly, this Court held that 

even if a disparity did exist between the Walnut Springs assessments and other properties found 

to be comparable thereto for the 2007 tax year, the Assessor would necessarily be given the 

opportunity to attain rough equality over a short period of time. Mountain America, 224 W. Va. 

at 689,687 S.E.2d at 788. Thus, even ifthere was a disparity in the assessments, Ms. Huffinan, 

as the Assessor of Monroe County, is permitted more than a single year to make the necessary 

adjustments to the assessments. 

Even if the Petitioners' appeal to the Circuit Court in the 2008 proceeding challenged the 

constitutionality of the 2008 assessments on different grounds from those presented in the 2007 

dispute, it does not indicate that the cause of action involved in both proceedings· is distinct. 

Accordingly, even if this Court determines that the Petitioners have challenged the 

constitutionality of the assessments of the property located in the Walnut Springs development 

on new and unique grounds from the 2007 proceeding, the cause of action identified in the 

present matter is the same as the cause of action presented in the 2007 claim and is barred under 

the doctrine of res judicata. 

Despite the disgruntled landowners' arguments to the contrary, the facts presented in In 

re United Carbon Co. Assessment, 118 W. Va. 348, 190 S.B. 546 (1937), are distinguishable 

from those in the present matter, most significantly because the Court in United Carbon did not 

have the benefit of a prior decision of the Supreme Court of Appeals of West Virginia arising 

from the same set of facts and addressing the same constitutional arguments. In United Carbon, 

the taxpayer challenging a property tax assessment argued that the intangibles, including various 

ban1e accounts, notes, and accounts receivable, which had been taxed had no situs in West 
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Virginia. Id. at 349, 190 S.B. at 547. Thus, it was material to the inquiry to make a factual 

determination regarding the applicable intangible property which was assessed each year because 

the origin of the individual items comprising the intangibles had a direct bearing on the situs of 

the property for tax purposes. Id. at 351, 190 S.E. at 548. In the present matter, the assessed 

value of the property in the Walnut Springs development for the 2008 tax year remained 

unchanged from the assessed value as determined by Ms. Huffman, as the Assessor of Monroe 

County, for the 2007 tax year. App. p. 000034. Thus, the facts upon' which this Court's 

judgment rested for the 2007 Claim are the same as those that Petitioners are seeking to retry in 

the present proceeding. 

Based on the foregoing, the causes of action in the present matter are substantially similar 

to those presented in the 2007 Claim. Accordingly, the third and final element of res judicata, as 

determined by this Court, is satisfied. Because all three elements of res judicata are present, the 

Circuit Court properly concluded that the Petitioners' Petition for Appeal from Ad Valorem 

Property Tax Assessments was barred by res judicata. 

B. 	 THE FORM AND CONTENT OF THE ORDER ENTERED BY THE 
CIRCUIT COURT WERE PROPER. 

The Petitioners argue that the Order entered by the Circuit Court was required to include 

findings of fact and conclusions of law; however, the decision cited by the Petitioners in support 

of this argument is inapplicable, as it is limited to orders regarding appeals of ad valorem tax 

assessments of commercial real property. Stone Brook Ltd. P'ship v. Sisinni, 224 W. Va. 691, 

706, 688 S.E.2d 300, 315 (2009). The regulations regarding the appraisal of commercial or 

industrial property require that multiple factors be considered in determining the appraised value 

of the property. Id. at 704, 688 S.E.2d at 313. Nevertheless, this Court noted that it is rarely 

presented with a record from which it is able to determine whether each factor has been 

16 




considered in the appraisal of commercial or industrial property, thus necessitating the ruling in 

Stone Brook. rd. at 705, 688 S.E.2d at 314. The property that is the subject of the present matter 

is not commercial property. Accordingly, the Circuit Court was not required by Stone Brook to 

include findings of fact and conclusions of law in its Order~ This is particularly true of the 

present matter in light of the existence of detailed findings of fact and conclusions of law with 

respect to the 2007 proceeding. 

VII. CONCLUSION 

Based on the foregoing, the Circuit Court of Monroe County correctly applied the 

doctrine of res judicata. Because all three elements of the doctrine of res jUdicata are satisfied, 

the Circuit Court of Monroe County properly concluded that the Petitioners' petition for appeal 

had previously been ruled on and any subsequent litigation was barred. Moreover, the Circuit 

Court did not err in not including findings of fact and conclusions of law in its Order in light of 

the factual development and legal analysis in the 2007 proceeding. Accordingly, the 

Respondent, Donna Huffman, Assessor of Monroe County, respectfully requests that this Court 

deny the Petitioners' prayer for relief and affirm the Order Denying Petition for Appeal from Ad 

Valorem Property Tax Assessments entered by the Circuit Court.